
 
 
 
 
  

 
                      MEETING AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE 
PLAN COMMISSION 

Memorial Hall – Memorial Building 
19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

Wednesday, July 14, 2021 
7:30 p.m. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
 
2. ROLL CALL  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Non-Agenda Items) 
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 12, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
5. SCHEDULING OF PUBLIC HEARINGS – No discussion will take place regarding the requested 

application except to determine a time and date for the public hearing [The next regular Plan 
Commission meeting is scheduled on Wednesday, August 11, 2021] 

 
a) Case A-12-2021 – 149 E. Ogden Avenue – Design Review Permit, Exterior Appearance and 

Site Plan Review, and Sign Permit Review to allow for exterior changes to the existing 
convenience store building and gas station canopy, and to allow for the installation of new 
signage for The Pride of Hinsdale located in the B-3 General Business District 

 
6. SIGNAGE 
 

a) Case A-10-2021 – 137 S. Garfield Street – Union Church of Hinsdale – Installation of One (1) 
Ground Sign with a Bulletin Board 

 
b) Case A-13- 2021 – 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue – Marabella Home – Installation of One (1) Wall Sign 

 
c) Case A-14-2021 – 110 S. Washington Street – County Line Home Design Center – Installation 

of One (1) Wall Sign 
 
7. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Public comments are welcome on any topic related to the business of the Commission at Regular and Special Meetings during the 
portion of the meeting devoted to a particular agenda item, or during the period designated for public comment for non-agenda items. 
Individuals who wish to comment must be recognized by the Chairperson and then speak at the podium, beginning by identifying 
themselves by name and address. All members of the public are requested to keep their written comments or testimony to three pages 
or less, and speakers are requested to keep their live comments or testimony to five minutes or less. Submissions or comments 
exceeding those limits may, if time allows and at the discretion of the Chairperson, be presented after all others have had an opportunity 
to testify, comment or have their comments read. Matters on this Agenda may be continued from time to time without further notice, 
except as otherwise required under the Illinois Open Meetings Act. 
 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with disabilities who 
plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this 
meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact Brad Bloom, ADA 
Coordinator at 630-789-7007 or by TDD at 630-789-7022 promptly to allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons. Additional information may be found on the Village’s website at www.villageofhinsdale.org 

http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/


 
 

 
MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
PLAN COMMISSION 

19 E. CHICAGO AVENUE, HINSDALE, IL   
[CONDUCTED ELECTRONICALLY] 

May 12, 2021 
7:30 P.M. 

 
 
Call to Order & Roll Call 
Chairman Cashman called the meeting to order at 7:32 PM. The meeting was conducted electronically, 
with a live audio stream of the meeting available to the public via Channel 6 and on the Village website.   
 
Roll call was taken and a quorum was present at the meeting.  
 
PRESENT: Steve Cashman, Julie Crnovich, Anna Fiascone, Patrick Hurley, *Jim 

Krillenberger, Mark Willobee 
 
ABSENT: Gerald Jablonski, Troy Unell 
 
ALSO PRESENT:      Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development; Bethany Salmon, Village 

Planner 
  
Chairman Cashman stated that due to the ongoing public health emergency, and consistent with the 
Governor’s most recent emergency declaration, various Executive Orders entered by the Governor, 
and the recent amendments made to the Open Meetings Act in Public Act 101-640, the Village 
President has determined that an in-person meeting is not practical or prudent at this time, and this 
meeting will therefore be conducted electronically.  
 
Public comment is permitted during the public hearing during that portion of the hearing. The Chairman 
asked persons wishing to make public comment to identify themselves before speaking, spelling their 
last name and stating their address. 
 
*Commissioner Krillenberger joined the meeting at 8:42 p.m.  

 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
Chairman Cashman asked for any public comments. There was no public comment pertaining to non-
agenda items.  
 
Approval of the Minutes – April 14, 2021 
A motion was made by Commissioner Hurley, seconded by Commissioner Crnovich, to approve the 
April 14, 2021 draft minutes as submitted. The motion carried by the roll call vote as follows: 
 

Ayes:  Commissioners Crnovich, Fiascone, Hurley, and Chairman Cashman 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: Commissioner Willobee 
Absent: Commissioners Krillenberger, Jablonski, Unell 

 
 
 
 
 

Approved 
 



Plan Commission 
Meeting Minutes - Draft 

May 12, 2021 
 

2 

Findings and Recommendations 
 
a) Case A-04-2021 – 110 E. Ogden Avenue – Major Adjustment to the Exterior Appearance and 

Site Plan Review to allow for the redevelopment and expansion of an existing one-story 
building into a two-story medical office building in the O-2 Limited Office District 

 
Commissioner Willobee noted that he was unable to attend the meeting but reviewed the plans and 
was in support. A motion was made by Commissioner Fiascone, seconded by Commissioner 
Willobee, to approve the Findings and Recommendations for Case A-02-2021, as submitted. The 
motion carried by a roll call vote of 5-0 as follows: 

 
Ayes:  Commissioners Crnovich, Fiascone, Hurley, Willobee, and Chairman Cashman 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Commissioners Krillenberger, Jablonski, Unell 

 
Signage 
 
a) Case A-03-2021 – 29 E. 1st Street – Egg Harbor Cafe – Installation of One (1) Wall Sign  

 
John Streetz, representing the sign contractor Doyle Signs, provided a brief overview of the proposed 
signage plans for Egg Harbor Café. Mr. Streetz noted that the Historic Preservation Commission 
approved the plans with the recommendation that the letters be made slightly smaller to increase 
spacing around the text.  
 
The applicant provided two alternative layouts with smaller text. Because the applicant was calling in 
by phone, Ms. Salmon shared her screen with the Commissioner to show the original proposal and 
the two alternative options with the text to be 18 inches tall and the text 16 inches tall based on the 
Historic Preservation Commission’s recommendation. The original text was 19 ½ inches tall. The two 
alternative options were not available to be included in the Plan Commission packet.  
 
Commissioner Crnovich noted concern that the new red background of the sign would not match the 
sides of the canopy and preferred a white background. Commissioner Crnovich also stated a 
preference for the white background, that the original letters appeared too large, and concerns over 
the proposed font.   
 
Mr. Streetz stated that the proposed font and colors are designed to match the current branding used 
by Egg Harbor Café at all of their locations. Mr. Streetz mentioned another location in Chicago in 
Streeterville where they used similar signage.  
 
Commissioner Fiascone also agreed that the 16 inch smaller font size was preferred as more spacing 
was provided and was okay if the sign matches the business’s current branding. 
 
Commissioner Willobee was in support of the smaller 16 inch font size and noted that the font and 
colors were okay in regard to branding and it was on a different face than the sides of the canopy. He 
asked for additional information on if the existing light fixtures will be dimmed after hours and timing.  
 
Commissioner Cashman noted that the website stated they are open 7:00am to 2:00pm. Mr. Streetz 
stated those hours sound correct and another sign he completed for a different location included 
those hours.  
 



Plan Commission 
Meeting Minutes - Draft 

May 12, 2021 
 

3 

Commissioner Hurley was okay with the sign if it was consistent with their branding and the sign is 
distinctive.  
 
Chairman Cashman supported the smaller 16 inch font size as it provides additional spacing from the 
lighting and trim. The red color ties into the brick on the building. Even though there may be a 
disconnect between the sides of the canopy and the red sign area, you will see these areas from two 
different viewing experiences from a car versus as a pedestrian.  

 
Overall, the Commission recommended the smaller font size and that the existing exterior lighting be 
turned off by 10:00 p.m., which is consistent with the condition approved by the Plan Commission for 
other business in the downtown.  
 
No public comment was made at the meeting regarding this request.  

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Willobee, seconded by Commissioner Hurley, to approve the 
sign permit request for Case A-03-2021 for Egg Harbor Café located at 29 E. 1st Street, subject to the 
condition that the sign used 16 inches tall letters and that the lights be turned off by 10:00 p.m. The 
motion carried by a vote of 5-0 as follows: 

 
Ayes:  Commissioners Crnovich, Fiascone, Hurley, Willobee, and Chairman Cashman 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Commissioners Krillenberger, Jablonski, Unell 
 

Commissioner Krillenberger joined the meeting at 8:42 p.m.  
 

b) Case A-06-2021 – 34 E. Hinsdale Avenue – Bake Homemade Pizza – Installation of One (1) 
Wall Sign  

 
Mike Hoffer, with Aubrey Sign Company, was present at the meeting and provided an overview of the 
proposed sign to the Commissioners. Mr. Hoffer stated that he was unable to be present at the 
previous Historic Preservation Commission meeting due to a personal emergency, but has worked 
to put alternative sign plans together based on the recommendations by the Commission.  
 
It was noted that the Historic Preservation Commission tabled a vote on this sign due to concerns 
that the applicant was not present and about the design, scale, and location of the sign. The Historic 
Preservation Commission stated the proposed sign conflicted with the building’s architecture due to 
its location in the brick area above the storefront window, which was never intended for signage and 
spacing near the centered brick rosette feature.  
 
Mr. Hoffer shared his screen with the Commissioners to show them the original sign plan and the 
alternative sign plan, which was not able to be included in the Plan Commission packets. Mr. Hoffer 
stated that the background color has been changed from white to black, the tagline was removed, 
and the sign is now proposed to be mounted to the window mullions. The sign area will align with the 
dimensions of the transom area for the barber shop, the adjacent tenant space in the building.  
   
Ms. Salmon provided an overview of alternative plans discussed with staff and limitations of installing 
other signage types on the building, such as the signs currently located at the Starbucks building in 
the downtown. The proposed plans will be referred back to the Historic Preservation Commission for 
review for a vote and staff will work with the applicant in the meantime on obtaining temporary 



Plan Commission 
Meeting Minutes - Draft 

May 12, 2021 
 

4 

signage. The Plan Commission can make a final decision on the signage at the meeting, but it will 
ultimately be brought back to the Historic Preservation Commission for a vote.  
 
Commissioner Crnovich expressed strong support for the new sign compared to the original sign, 
with the color change, new location, and removal of the tag line. There is also an opportunity for a 
projecting sign.  
 
Commissioner Fiascone noted the new sign was a great improvement compared to the original sign.  
 
Commissioner Willobee also was in support of the alternative sign plan and noted if there is a sign 
request for the adjacent tenant space in the future, the proposed signage would be better balanced.  
 
Commissioner Hurley stated the black background color looks better than the white color and the new 
location may be more beneficial in terms of visibility from a pedestrian stand point.  
 
Commissioner Krillenberger also supported the new sign in terms of appearance and placement. 
 
The applicant confirmed that the sign would not be illuminated.  
 
Commissioner Cashman also expressed support for the new sign and asked when the business 
intends to open. Staff noted that the business is currently getting final inspections through the Village. 
Staff noted that this option was sent to two Commissioners for preliminary discussion and they noted 
the proposed sign was a better alternative. It was recommended that staff could reach out to the 
Historic Preservation Commission if there is a way to administratively approve this versus hold it until 
July.  
  
No public comment was made at the meeting regarding this request.  

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Willobee, seconded by Commissioner Fiascone, to approve 
the sign permit request for Case A-06-2021 for Bake Homemade Pizza located at 34 E. Hinsdale 
Avenue, subject to the applicant installing the revised wall sign as presented at the Plan Commission 
meeting. The motion carried by a vote of 6-0 as follows: 

 
Ayes:  Commissioners Crnovich, Fiascone, Hurley, Krillenberger, Willobee, and Chairman 

Cashman 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Commissioners Jablonski, Unell 

 
c) Case A-07-2021 – 10 E. 1st Street – Expression Gallery of Final Art – Installation of One (1) 

Wall Sign 
 

Sue LaCroix with Concord Signs provided an overview of the proposed sign and noted the new sign 
will include a black metal background and gold vinyl text It was confirmed that the sign is non-
illuminated.  
 
Overall, the Commissioners expressed support for the sign. No public comment was made at the 
meeting regarding this request.  
 
 



Plan Commission 
Meeting Minutes - Draft 

May 12, 2021 
 

5 

A motion was made by Commissioner Krillenberger, seconded by Commissioner Hurley, to approve 
the sign permit request for Case A-07-2021 for Expression Gallery of Fine Art located at 10 E. 1st 
Street, as submitted. The motion carried by a vote of 6-0 as follows: 
 

Ayes:  Commissioners Crnovich, Fiascone, Hurley, Krillenberger, Willobee, and Chairman 
Cashman 

Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Commissioners Jablonski, Unell 

 
d) Case A-09-2021 – 48 S. Washington Street Unit 2 – Meredith Jay – Installation of One (1) Wall 

Sign 
 

Cullen Fuller provided an overview of the proposed signage. The proposed aluminum letters will be 
pin-mounted onto the black area above the storefront windows and will match the signage for the 
adjacent tenant in the building, My Sister Kate, in terms of height and width of letters.  
 
The Commission stated strong support for the proposed sign, noting the sign and font is tasteful 
and will fit with the building and the downtown area.  
 
It was noted that there was an error included in the staff report that the sign was non-illuminated. It 
was clarified that the sign will not be internally illuminated, but there is existing gooseneck lighting 
that will illuminate the sign. No new lighting is proposed.  
 
Commissioner Krillenberger asked about the type of clothing and boutique store. Mr. Fuller stated 
there are two combined stores in downtown Glen Ellyn that they currently operate.  
 
Overall, the Commissioners expressed support for the sign in terms of the font, size, color, and 
scale with the building.  

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Hurley, seconded by Commissioner Crnovich, to approve the 
sign permit request for Case A-09-2021 for Meredith Jay located at 48 S. Washington Street Unit 2, 
as submitted. The motion carried by a vote of 6-0 as follows: 
 

Ayes:  Commissioners Crnovich, Fiascone, Hurley, Krillenberger, Willobee, and Chairman 
Cashman 

Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Commissioners Jablonski, Unell 

 
Other Business 
 
a) June Plan Commission Meeting  

The Plan Commission meeting schedule for June 9, 2021 has been cancelled. The next regular 
meeting is scheduled for July 14, 2021. It is anticipated that the next meeting may be held in 
person.  

 
 
 
 
 



Plan Commission 
Meeting Minutes - Draft 

May 12, 2021 
 

6 

b) Signage 
Ms. Salmon brought up that there could be issues in regulating content based on a previous Supreme 
Court decision, Reed v. Town of Gilbert. The Village may want to look into if the Sign Code has any 
conflicts or issues, such as if regulations restricting items like a tagline might violate past court 
decisions.  
 
It was noted that Historic Preservation Commissioner Prisby has been working on design guidelines 
for signage in the downtown and there will be a discussion on these in the future with the Plan 
Commission.  

 
c) Title 14 - Historic Preservation Regulations 

Ms. Salmon provided an overview of the progress on amendments to Title 14 and the meeting held 
at a joint Committee of the Whole & Historic Preservation Commission on May 4, 2021. The intent 
of the meeting was to provide an overview for the Board of Trustees on the existing historic 
preservation regulations and processes to set the stage for future discussions on amendments to 
Title 14. The next anticipated meetings are to be held before the regularly scheduled Board 
meetings. Ms. Salmon will keep the Plan Commission meeting updated on the progress for bringing 
any proposed changes forward through the formal process.  

 
Adjournment 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krillenberger, seconded by Commissioner Hurley, to adjourn the 
meeting. The meeting was adjourned at 8:42 PM after a unanimous voice vote of 6-0.    
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Bethany Salmon, Village Planner 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 
 
 

DATE:   July 9, 2021 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:   Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  

SUBJECT:  Case A-12-2021 – 149 E. Ogden Avenue – Design Review Permit, Exterior Appearance and 
Site Plan Review, and Sign Permit Review to allow for exterior changes to the existing 
convenience store building and gas station canopy, and to allow for the installation of 
new signage for The Pride of Hinsdale located in the B-3 General Business District - 
Scheduling of a Public Hearing 

FOR:   July 14, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
GENERAL APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Applicant: The PRIDE Stores 

Subject Property: 149 E. Ogden Avenue (PIN: 09-01-201-011) 

Site Area: 0.87 acres (38,078 square feet) 

Existing Zoning & Land Use: B-3 General Business District – Convenience Store (Pride of Hinsdale), Gasoline 
Service Station (BP), Restaurant (Urban Counter) 

Surrounding Zoning & Land Use: 
North:  O-2 Limited Office District – Multi-tenant office building  
South:  B-3 General Business District – (across Ogden Avenue) Automotive repair / Restaurant  
East:  O-3 General Office District – (across York Road) Multi-tenant office building 
West:  O-2 Limited Office District – Multi-tenant office building 
 
APPLICATION SUMMARY 
The applicant requests approval of a Design Review Permit, Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review, 
and Sign Permit Review to allow for exterior changes to the existing convenience store building and gas 
station canopy, and to allow for the installation of a new wall sign, canopy sign, and sign face on the 
existing ground sign located at 149 E. Ogden Avenue in the B-3 General Business District.  
 
The subject property is located in the Design Review Overlay District and is subject to the requirements 
set forth in Article 8 and Section 11-605 of the Zoning Code. It is requested that the public hearing for this 
application request be scheduled for the next regular Plan Commission meeting on August 11, 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Several uses currently operate on the subject property, including the Pride of Hinsdale convenience 
store, a BP gas station, and Urban Counter, a restaurant with an existing outdoor patio on the west side 
of the building. Various improvements have been previously approved by the Village: 



 
 
 
 
 

2 

MEMORANDUM 

• Ordinance No. O2003-3: In 2003, the Village Board approved a Design Review Permit for signage 
and façade updates  

• Ordinance No. O2005-29: On July 19, 2005, the Village Board approved a Design Review Permit for 
changes to signage  

• Ordinance No. O2008-16: On April 15, 2008, the Village Board approved a Design Review Permit for 
changes to signage and the exterior elevations of the convenience store building 

• Ordinance No. O2011-31: On June 21, 2011, the Village Board approved a Special Use Permit to 
allow for a carry-out eating facility in the B-3 District, a Design Review Permit, and Site Plan and 
Exterior Appearance Review to allow for the construction of an addition on the west side of the 
existing building as well as for changes to the site plan, gas station canopy, and wall signage 

• Ordinance No. O2012-11: On March 6, 2021, the Village Board approved a Major Adjustment to the 
Site Plan and Exterior Appearance Plan to allow for an 88 square foot increase to the building to 
accommodate additional bathrooms required for the quick-serve restaurant approved by Ordinance 
No. O2011-31.  

 
REQUEST AND ANALYSIS 
The applicant is requesting several changes to signage as well as the exterior elevations of the 
convenience store and gas station canopy. The proposed changes are summarized below.  
 
Exterior Changes to the Convenience Store Building  
As shown on the proposed exterior elevations, the existing green fabric awnings located at the southeast 
and southwest corners of the building will be removed and replaced with wood trellis awnings featuring 
tie-back rods affixed to the building fascia. The wood will be stained a dark brown color (“Cordovan 
Brown” by Behr). At the southeast corner of the building, the awning will measure 9’ from the adjacent 
grade and will extend 5’-2” horizontally from the building. At the southwest corner of the building near 
the outdoor patio area, the wood trellis will measure 10’-2” from the adjacent grade and will extend 5’-
5” horizontally from the building. As proposed, the awnings meet the Village’s code requirements. In 
addition to the installation of the new wood trellis awnings, the applicant proposes to repaint the existing 
light beige metal roof to a black color.  
 
Wall Sign on the Convenience Store Building  
There are currently two existing wall signs located on the south elevation of the convenience store 
building facing Ogden Avenue. The existing sign for Urban Counter located on the brick area between the 
storefront windows measures 3’ tall and 6’-6 ¾” wide, with a sign face area of 19.68 square feet. There 
are no proposed changes to the existing wall sign for Urban Counter. 
 
The existing sign for The Pride convenience store is currently mounted onto the storefront windows on 
the south elevation to the right of the main entrance doors. This sign will be removed and a new wall sign 
will be installed above the proposed wood trellis awning. As shown on the signage plans, the internally-
illuminated wall sign will measure 7’ wide and 3’-6” tall, with an overall sign face area of 24.5 square feet. 
The sign consists of white and blue letters and bordering on an oval black background. 
 
Per Section 9-106(J), in the B-3 District, two (2) awning valance, canopy valance, wall, or permanent 
window signs are allowed per user with a maximum gross surface area of one square foot per foot of 
building frontage, up to a maximum of 100 square feet for the entire building. It should be noted that the 
proposed sign may not be attached to the top of the wood trellis awning. If it was, the sign would be 



 
 
 
 
 

3 

MEMORANDUM 

classified as an awning sign and signage is only allowed on the valance portion of an awning or canopy. 
Additionally, the sign may not extend above the eave line of the mansard roof, which for this case was 
interpreted to be the top of the vertical flat area where the fabric awnings are currently located. If the 
proposed sign extends above this eave line, it would be considered a roof sign, which is prohibited.  
 
Gas Station Canopy Sign and Light Bar 
The applicant is proposing to replace the existing canopy sign, the BP Helios logo, on the south elevation 
facing Ogden Avenue with a new internally-illuminated LED sign. The proposed circular logo will have a 
diameter of 36” and will have a sign face area of 7.06 square feet. Only one (1) sign is proposed on the 
gas station canopy. Per Section 9-106, no signs shall project above, below, or beyond the physical 
dimensions of an awning or canopy. The proposed sign is located within the entire canopy valance area.  
 
The existing light bar on the south, east, and west elevations of the gas station canopy will be replaced 
with a new LED green light bar. The light bar will not be installed on the north elevation of the canopy to 
match the current configuration and instead new white aluminum composite material will be installed. 
 
A general description of the proposed light bar was included in a memo from Blair Image Elements, which 
states “There is no visible difference, no illumination difference, and no electrical difference between the 
Blair Lightbar product currently installed at the subject site and the "new" LBe hybrid product proposed 
for installation. The difference is in a few of the materials and largely production labor thereby reducing 
the cost of the product to pass through savings to the end user.” The existing and proposed light bar “does 
not exceed 0.3 footcandles above ambient as measured at 100' away from the light source.” 
 
Ground Sign 
The existing brick ground sign located at the southeast corner of the site near the intersection of Ogden 
Avenue and York Road currently contains a sign face for each of the three business on site. The applicant 
is requesting to remove the existing sign face for Urban Counter, relocate the existing BP sign face toward 
the bottom of the ground sign, and install a new sign face for The Pride at the top of the ground sign.  
 
As illustrated on the attached signage plans, the existing sign face for the BP gas station includes  
an internally-illuminated green and yellow Helios logo and text that measure 5’-7/8” inches wide and 4’-
6” tall, for a total sign area of 22.8 square feet. The proposed sign face for The Pride will measure 6’ wide 
and 2’-9” tall, with a signage area of 16.5 square feet. The new sign face will match the proposed wall sign 
on the convenience store building and features white and blue channel letters and bordering on an oval 
black background.  
 
Per Section 9-106(J), in the B-3 District, ground signs shall not exceed 8’ in height and may have a 
maximum gross surface area of a 50 square feet per sign face with no more than 2 faces per sign. When 
removing the brick background area and ground sign base, the overall sign area encompassing both the 
existing sign face for BP and the proposed sign face for The Pride measures 44.75 square feet (7.45’ tall 
and 6’ wide). The supporting structure and base of a ground sign are generally omitted from the sign face 
area calculations unless the structure is made part of the message or face of the sign. The applicant is 
proposing an overall height of 9’ measured from the base of the sign to the top of sign face for The Pride, 
which exceeds the allowable 8’ height.  
 
Per Section 11-607, the Plan Commission has the authority to grant certain modifications to sign code 
provisions provided that the applicant establishes compliance with all of the standards listed in the code: 



 
 
 
 
 

4 

MEMORANDUM 

• General Standard: Carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of Section 9-106 of this code would 
create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty not caused by an act or omission of the applicant. 

• Unusual Physical Limitations: The subject property or the structure on which the sign is proposed 
to be located is burdened with an unusual physical limitation, such as an irregular shape, unusual 
geographic location, exceptional topographical feature, or other extraordinary physical condition, 
that is peculiar to the subject property and that is more than merely an inconvenience or cost 
consideration to the applicant. 

• Adverse Impacts: The modification, if granted, would have no adverse impact on any abutting or 
adjacent property and no adverse impact on the essential character of any part of or all of the 
neighborhood of the subject property. 

• Public Health and Safety: The modification, if granted, would have no adverse impact on, and would 
not endanger, the public health or safety. 

• Compliance with Permit Standards: The application satisfies the standards of Section 11-607(E), 
Standards for Sign Permits.   

 
In 2011, the Village approved an increase to the height of the sign from 8’ to 9’-6” to allow for the BP 
Helios logo to extend above the top of the ground sign. Based on the sign permit issued in 2012, the overall 
area of the ground sign measured 6’ wide and 9’-6” tall (57 square feet). Under the current application, 
the Plan Commission may approve an increase to the maximum allowable height from grade by not more 
than 20%. The proposed increase to the overall height of the ground sign from the allowable 8’ to 9’ 
represents a 12.5% increase to height, but would reduce the existing height by 6”. 
 
Lighting Standards  
The applicant will be required to meet the Village’s lighting standards. The illumination of any sign, 
resulting from any internal or external artificial light source, may not exceed 50 foot-candles when 
measured with a standard light meter held perpendicular to the sign face at a distance equal to the 
narrowest dimension of such sign face. All artificial illumination shall be so designed, located, shielded, 
and directed as to illuminate only the sign face or faces and to prevent the casting of glare or direct light 
upon adjacent property or streets.  
 
REVIEW PROCESS 

Design Permit Review - Per Section 11-605, a public hearing shall be set, noticed, and conducted by the 
Plan Commission in accordance with Section 11-303. Within 35 days following the conclusion of the public 
hearing, the Plan Commission shall, in writing, recommend to the Board of Trustees to grant the Design 
Review Permit with or without modifications or subject to conditions, or deny the Design Review Permit. 
In reaching its recommendation, the Plan Commission shall be guided by the purposes for which the 
Design Review District is designated and by the particular standards and considerations set forth in the 
Zoning Code. The failure of the Plan Commission to act within 35 days, or such longer period of time as 
may be agreed to by the applicant, shall be deemed a recommendation to deny the Design Review Permit. 
 
Within 35 days after receiving the recommendation of the Plan Commission, or, if the Plan Commission 
fails to act within 35 days following the conclusion of the public hearing, within 70 days following the 
conclusion of such public hearing, the Board shall, by ordinance duly adopted, grant the Design Review 
Permit with or without modifications or subject to conditions, or deny the Design Review Permit. The 
failure of the Board to act within the time limits, or such longer time as may be agreed to by the applicant, 
shall be deemed a denial of the Design Review Permit. In reaching its decision, the Board shall be guided 



 
 
 
 
 

5 

MEMORANDUM 

by the purposes for which the Design Review District is designated and by the particular standards and 
considerations set forth in the Zoning Code.  
 
Exterior Appearance & Site Plan Review - Pursuant to Section 11-604 and Section 11-606, the Chairman 
of the Plan Commission shall at the public meeting on the application for an Exterior Appearance Review 
or Site Plan Review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, material and nonrepetitive 
comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the public meeting, the Plan 
Commission shall transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the form specified in 
subsection 11-103(H), recommending either approval or disapproval of the Exterior Appearance and Site 
Plan based on the standards set forth in Section 11-604 and Section 11-606. 
 
Any nonresidential property located within 250 feet from a single-family zoning district shall be subject to 
the notice requirements set forth in Section 11-604 and Section 11-303. The subject property is not 
located within 250 feet from a single-family zoning district and therefore is not required to provide notice 
via certified mail to the surrounding properties and by posting a sign. Public notice in the newspaper is 
the only form of notice required for the requested application.  
 
Sign Permit Review - Per Section 11-607, sign permit applications shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Plan Commission and do not require public notification. The Plan Commission maintains final authority 
on signage with no further action required by the Board of Trustees. Per Section 11-607(E), no sign 
permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 
 

Because the subject property is located in the Design Review Overlay District, the more stringent review 
process applies. Therefore, in addition to the regulations Section 11-607 and Section 9-106, signs shall 
also subject to the standards and regulations for the Design Review Overlay District.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Aerial View  
3. Birdseye View  
4. Street View  
5. Section 11-605(E) – Design Review Permit Standards and Considerations 
6. Design Review Permit, Exterior Appearance/Site Plan, Sign Permit Applications and Exhibits  

 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

149 E. Ogden 
Avenue 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 
 

 

149 E. Ogden Avenue 
 



Aerial View – 149 E. Ogden  
 

 

 



Birds Eye View – 149 E. Ogden Avenue 
 
 

 

View Looking to the Northwest 



Street View – 110 S. Washington Street  
 

 

 

Looking North from Ogden Avenue 

 

 

 

 



Street View – 110 S. Washington Street  
 
 

 

Looking West from York Road  

 



1 
 

Section 11-605(E) – Design Review Permit Standards and Considerations  
 
E.   Standards And Considerations For Design Review Permit: In passing upon applications for design review 
permits, the plan commission and the board of trustees shall consider and evaluate the propriety of issuing the 
design review permit in terms of its effect on the purposes for which the design review district is designated. In 
addition, the plan commission and the board of trustees shall be guided by the following standards and 
considerations: 
 

1. Quality Of Design And Site Development:  New and existing buildings and structures and appurtenances 
thereof which are constructed, reconstructed, materially altered, repaired, or moved shall be evaluated 
under the following quality of design and site development guidelines: 

(a) Open Spaces: The quality of the open spaces between buildings and in setback spaces between 
street and façade 

(b) Materials: The quality of materials and their relationship to those in existing adjacent structures. 

(c) General Design: The quality of the design in general and its relationship to the overall character of 
neighborhood. 

(d) General Site Development: The quality of the site development in terms of landscaping, recreation, 
pedestrian access, automobile access, parking, servicing of the property, and impact on vehicular 
traffic patterns and conditions on site and in the vicinity of the site, and the retention of trees and 
shrubs to the maximum extent possible. 
 

2. Visual Compatibility: New and existing buildings and structures, and appurtenances thereof, which are 
constructed, reconstructed, materially altered, repaired, or moved shall be visually compatible in terms of 
the following guidelines: 

(a) Height: The height of the proposed buildings and structures shall be visually compatible with 
adjacent buildings. 

(b) Proportion Of Front Facade: The relationship of the width to the height of the front elevation shall 
be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related. 

(c) Proportion Of Openings: The relationship of the width to height of windows shall be visually 
compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which the building is visually related. 

(d) Rhythm Of Solids To Voids In Front Facades: The relationship of solids to voids in the front facade of 
a building shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually 
related. 

(e) Rhythm Of Spacing And Buildings On Streets: The relationship of a building or structure to the open 
space between it and adjoining buildings or structures shall be visually compatible with the 
buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related. 

(f) Rhythm Of Entrance Porch And Other Projections: The relationship of entrances and other 
projections to sidewalks shall be visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, and places to 
which it is visually related. 

(g) Relationship Of Materials And Texture: The relationship of the materials and texture of the facade 
shall be visually compatible with the predominant materials used in the buildings and structures to 
which it is visually related. 



2 
 

(h) Roof Shapes: The roof shape of a building shall be visually compatible with the buildings to which it 
is visually related. 

(i) Walls Of Continuity: Building facades and appurtenances such as walls, fences, and landscape 
masses shall, when it is a characteristic of the area, form cohesive walls of enclosure along a street 
to ensure visual compatibility with the buildings, public ways, and places to which such elements are 
visually related. 

(j) Scale Of Building: The size and mass of buildings and structures in relation to open spaces, windows, 
door openings, porches, and balconies shall be visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, 
and places to which they are visually related. 

(k) Directional Expression Of Front Elevation: A building shall be visually compatible with the buildings, 
public ways, and places to which it is visually related in its directional character, whether this be 
vertical character, horizontal character, or nondirectional character. 
 

3. Special Considerations For Existing Buildings: For existing buildings, the plan commission and the board of 
trustees shall consider the availability of materials, technology, and craftsmanship to duplicate existing 
styles, patterns, textures, and overall detailing. 
 

4. Manuals And Guidelines: The plan commission may from time to time provide for specific manuals or 
guidelines for architectural styles or common occurring buildings or site features and elements to assist 
applicants for design review permits. Such manuals or guidelines shall be advisory only and shall bind 
neither the applicant nor the plan commission or the board of trustees with respect to any specific case. 

 











































 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Village of Hinsdale 

19 E Chicago Ave 

Hinsdale, IL 60521 

 

  RE: The PRIDE of Hinsdale 149 E Ogden Ave 

 

Honorable Board Members, 

 

We are proposing to make the following Improvements to The PRIDE of Hinsdale 

located on the North West Corner of Ogden Ave and York Road.   

 

Canopy ‐ Update the Canopy to the new BP Image which includes replacing current BP 

Helios with new LED Version plus replace current Green Light Bar with new LED 

Green Light Bar. 

 

Monument Sign ‐ Replace the current Urban Counter Sign with The PRIDE Sign, then 

place The PRIDE Sign ontop of the Monument and move the existing BP Sign 

underneath.  The Square Footage of Signage will remain the same plus the overall 

Height will decrease from 9’ 6” to 9’. 

 

Exterior of Store ‐ Paint the existing Metal Roof Black, replace the current fabric 

awnings with Wood Pergolas, install The PRIDE Sign over the wall area above the East 

Pergola. 

 

We believe these enhancements will greatly benefit the look of our Business that we 

have been Owners of for over 11 Years.  We are looking forward to working with the 

Village and appreciate your continued support. 

 

Thank you for your time. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Mario Spina 

CEO & Owner 



YO
RK

 STREET (PUBLIC) 66' R/W

OGDEN AVE. (P
UBLIC) 66' R

/W

NATIONAL BANK OF BLUE

ISLAND

R87-002909

YORK & OGDEN, L
LC

R2007-135776

38,078 SQ.FT.

0.87 AC.

AMOCO OIL CO.

R-89-047575

LOT 11

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 10

4

A

149 East Ogden At York
Hinsdale, IL

BP PRODUCTS NORTH
AMERICA INC.

PER FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY TITLE
COMMITMENT 331460-014, DATED NOV. 18, 2009.

3.  Premises in question are located within the Hinsdale Sanitary District which is accepting federal
grants for pollution control pursuant to public law 92-500, the district must charge a user charge
separate from Ad Valorem taxes, which charges may be a continuing lien on the property,
attention is directed to Ordinance recorded as document R75-19171, affects site, blanket in nature, not
shown.

4.  Easement for telephone lines as established by Grant from Otto Huber to Illinois Bank Telephone
Co. recorded November 29, 1955 as document 782058. (affects the West 35 feet of the North 2 feet of the
South 46 feet of the Easterly 1/3 of Lot 11), as shown hereon.

5.  Easement for telephone lines as established by Grant from George H. Rhoades AND Julia
Rhoades to Illinois Bell Telephone Co. recorded November 29, 1955 as document 782059; does not affect
site.

(Lot 10 is 106 feet wide along Main Street.  Lot 11 is 300 feet wide along Main Street. Therefore the east
line of the middle 1 \3 of Lot 11 would be 206 feet west of lot 10 (106 + 100).Our west line is 190.04 + 12 =
202.04 west of Lot 10, does not affect site.)

LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

LEGEND:

EASEMENT NOTES:

ENCROACHMENT NOTES:
A BUILDING OVER SETBACK AS SHOWN

1. PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN FLOOD ZONE "X" PER
   COMMUNITY NUMBER 17031C0458J, DATED 08/19/2008.

2. PROPERTY IS ZONED B-3, CURRENT USE AS A GAS STATION/CONVINIANCE
STORE IS ALLOWED.

3. SETBACKS: PER VILLAGE OF HINSDALE ZONING OFFICE
         FRONT = 25'
         SIDE  = 10'
         REAR  = 20'
   MAX BUILDING HEIGHT = 30' OR 2 STORIES
   PARKING: 1 SPACE PER 200 SQ.FT. + 3 PER SERVICE BAY + 1 PER EMPLOYEE;
16 MARKED SPACES, 1 OF WHICH IS HANDICAP.

4. FIELD WORK PERFORMED OCTOBER 21, 2009.

5. ALL 5/8"REBAR SET ARE 0.3' ABOVE GROUND UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

6. THERE IS NO OBSERVABLE EVIDENCE OF EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION OR BUILDING ADDITIONS WITHIN RECENT MONTHS.

7. THERE IS NO VISIBLE EVIDENCE OF PROPOSED STREET RIGHT OF WAY
CHANGES. R.O.W. IS SHOWN PER CURRENT DEED AND TITLE INFORMATION.

8. THERE IS NO OBSERVABLE EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET OR SIDEWALK
CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIRS.

9. THERE IS NO OBSERVABLE EVIDENCE OF SITE USE AS A SOLID WASTE
DUMP, SUMP OR SANITARY LANDFILL.

10. ACCESS IS PROVIDED VIA DIRECT ACCESS TO YORK STREET AND OGDEN
AVENUE.

NOTES:

ALTA / ACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY
A PART OF LOTS 10 & 11 (EXCEPT THE SOUTHWESTERLY 1/3 OF SAID LOT 11)

ALL IN BLOCK 2 IN THE TOWN OF FULLERSBURGH,
 IN NE1/4 OF SECTION 1, T 38 N, R11E OF THE 3RD PRINCIPLE MERIDIAN

DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. DESCRIPTION

Legal Description :

THAT PART OF LOTS 10 AND 11 (EXCEPT THE SOUTHWESTERLY 1/3 OF SAID LOT 11) ALL IN BLOCK 2
IN THE TOWN OF FULLERSBURG IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH,
RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED
JUNE 14, 1852 AS DOCUMENT NO. 6172 AND RE-RECORDED APRIL 9, 1929 AS DOCUMENT NO. 277264,
TAKEN AS A TRACT DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: (THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE AFORESAID LOT 10 IS
CONSIDERED AS BEARING NORTH 28 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST) COMMENCING AT A
POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 10, DISTANT 12.00 FEET NORTHERLY OF THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF (SAID POINT BEING THE NORTHERLY CORNER OF A PARCEL OF LAND
CONVEYED TO THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, FOR THE USE OF THE DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, BY WARRANTY DEED DATED JANUARY 3, 1979 AND RECORDED JUNE 20, 1979 AS
DOCUMENT R79-51990); THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 28 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST
ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 10 (SAID LINE BEING ALSO THE WESTERLY LINE OF YORK
ROAD), FOR A DISTANCE OF 166.99 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 56 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 10
SECONDS WEST ALONG A LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 221.74 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE
OF THE SOUTHWESTERLY 1/3 OF SAID LOT 11 THAT IS 182.20 FEET NORTHERLY OF THE SOUTHERLY
LINE OF THE AFORESAID LOT 11 (BEING THE NORTHERLY LINE OF OGDEN AVENUE); THENCE SOUTH
34 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE AFORESAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE
SOUTHWESTERLY 1/3 OF LOT 11 A DISTANCE 182.20 FEET TO A POINT IN THE NORTHERLY LINE OF
THE AFORESAID OGDEN AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 54 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG
THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE AFORESAID LOTS 10 AND 11) BEING THE NORTHERLY LINE OF THE
AFORESAID OGDEN AVENUE), FOR A DISTANCE OF 189.96 FEET TO A POINT DISTANT 12.00 FEET
WESTERLY OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 10; THENCE NORTH 13 DEGREES 11 MINUTES
00 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE PEOPLE
OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, FOR A DISTANCE OF 17.92 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALL IN
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

CERTIFICATION

TO: BP Products North America Inc., Parent Petroleum, an Illinois corporation, Angel Associates Limited
Partnership, an Illinois limited partnership, Parent Petroleum Retail, Inc., an Illinois corporation, Harris
N.A.,  and First American Title Insurance Company.

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with
"Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/ACSM Land Title Survey's", jointly established and adopted
by ALTA, and NSPS in 2005, and includes Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7(a), 7(b)(1), 7(c), 8-10, and 11(a), 13, 14 of Table
A thereof.  Pursuant to the Accuracy Standards as adopted by ALTA and NSPS and in effect on the date of this
certification, undersigned further certifies that in my professional opinion, as a land surveyor registered in the
State of Illinois, the Relative Positional Accuracy of this survey does not exceed that which is specified therein.

This map or plat of survey of the premises shown hereon is the same as that described in First American Title
Insurance Company title commitment number 331460-014, November 18, 2009.

This professional service conforms to the current Illinois minimum standards for a boundary survey.

Date: October 23, 2009

____________________________
Registration No.2691





T/ SLAB

0'-0"

B/ FASCIA

± 9'-8"

T/ SLAB

0'-0"

B/ FASCIA

± 9'-8"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

PRIDE OF HINDSDALE - SIGN EXHIBIT
HINDSDALE, ILLINOIS

www.arch7design.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING METAL ROOF - PAINTED BENJAMIN MOORE: "BLACK INT.RM / EXT.RM"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW HANGING WOOD TRELLIS - STAINED: BEHR -"CORDOVAN BROWN" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-6 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FABRIC AWNING REMOVED FOR NEW HANGING WOOD TRELLIS - STAINED FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ILLUMINATED LED SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ILLUMINATED LED SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FABRIC AWNINGS REMOVED TO EXPOSE METAL FASCIA, PAINTED BENJAMIN MOORE: "BLACK INT.RM / EXT.RM"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FABRIC AWNINGS REMOVED TO EXPOSE METAL FASCIA, PAINTED BENJAMIN MOORE: "BLACK INT.RM / EXT.RM"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING METAL ROOF - PAINTED BENJAMIN MOORE: "BLACK INT.RM / EXT.RM"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW HANGING WOOD TRELLIS - STAINED: BEHR -"CORDOVAN BROWN" 



T/ SLAB
0'-0"

B/ FASCIA
± 9'-8"

T/ SLAB
0'-0"

B/ FASCIA
± 9'-8"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

PRIDE OF HINDSDALE - SIGN EXHIBIT
HINDSDALE, ILLINOIS

www.arch7design.com



House / KZ

149 E. Ogden Avenue
Hinsdale, IL 60521

Bill Marlow

2.10.21

2.12.21- placement

2.19.21- channel construction

4.14.21- new elevation

3/4" = 1'

No more than 30 foot-candles

1 of 1

PRD6742

6742

"This Document is owned by, and the information contained in it is proprietary to, Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. By receipt hereof the holder agrees not to use the information, disclose it to any third party,
nor reproduce this document without the prior written consent of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. Holder also agrees to immediately return this document upon request of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company."

© Copyright 2021 by Parvin-Clauss Sign Co.

PROJECT:

CUSTOMER APPROVAL:

REVISIONS:
1

2

3

4

5

6

DATE

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

REPRESENTATIVE

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

SHEET NO.

ESTIMATE / JOB NUMBER

FILE NAME

7

8

This sign is intended to be installed 
in accordance with the 

requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or 

other applicable local codes. This 
includes proper grounding and 

bonding of the sign.This sign is built to UL Standards
for operation in North America.

3
'-6

"

7'-0" 2"
3"

NOTE: FIELD SURVEY REQUIRED PRIOR TO FABRICATION

(1) 3'-6" x 7'-0" x 2" Deep Single Face Wall Sign w/ Illuminated Channel Le�ers - 24.50 SF
Panel:   2" Deep Fabricated Aluminum Painted PMS 288 Blue - Smooth Satin Finish
Faces:  .125" Aluminum Painted PMS 288 Blue
 Inline Strip: 3M 7725-10 White Vinyl
 Black/Grey Gradient: Digitally Printed on White Vinyl Applied to Face
Le�ers & White In-line:  Fabricated 3" Deep Channel Le�ers
 “The” Returns:  .040" Pre-�nished White Aluminum - ¾" White Trimcap
 “PRIDE” *& In-line Returns:  .040" Pre-�nished White Aluminum
   Painted PMS 288 Blue - ¾" White Trimcap
 Faces: White Acrylic w/ Avery UC 900-684T PMS 288 Blue Translucent
   Vinyl Applied to Faces
Illumination: White LEDs with Remote 60Wa� Power Supplies
Power: Use Existing at Site
Mounting:  A�ach with Mechanical Anchors Appropriate for Construction - T.B.D.

Disconnect
Switch

Wall

Junction Box

Electrical Conduit
& Fi�ing

3/8"-11 S.S. Threaded Rod
w/ Hex Nut & Lock Washer

Steel Angle

Silicone Caulk Applied to
all Wall Penetrations  

T/ SLAB
0'-0"

B/ FASCIA
± 9'-8"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



mspina
Text Box
WEST ELEVATION

mspina
Text Box
SOUTH ELEVATION

mspina
Text Box
EAST ELEVATION

mspina
Text Box
NORTH ELEVATION



This is an original concept drawing created by Big Red Rooster Flow, LLC. It is submitted for use in connection with the project being planned for you by BRRFlow. All or any part of this design (except registered trademarks) remains the property of BRRFlow.
 This drawing is not to scale. For all questions regarding the scope of the project, please contact Emily Wendt 847.971.6981 or The Brand Image Adviser, Larry Rowlands 708.495.5814

Back Elevation

Right Elevion

Left Elevation

Front Elevation

Signo� indicates that the above 
product has been permitted with 
any municipalities involved. By 
signing this document, the 
product will be manufactured to 

.

Approved By:

Date: 

AERIAL MAP:

2 Northfield Plaza, Ste 211  Northfield, IL 60093

See Site Notes page for specific paint codes and contact info. 
*REMOVE ALL EXISTING SIGNAGE*

NOTES:
For a two tier fascia, please remove all layers of fascia and take it back 
to the deck.  Then build the fascia height to 36”.

E

H1

I
J

L

H2

M

B Install Dimensional Bullnose Fascia With Light Bar

C2 Install BGB Flat ACM With Decal Applied With No Lightbar 
C1 Install Dimensional Bullnose Fascia With No Lightbar

D Install New White ACM
Federal Heath SuppliedJobber Supplied

Paint Existing Flat ACM White
Leave WhiteInstall Bullnose Decal

F Install Helios With Arc Kit
30” Helios  (restricted P&Z only)39” Helios
36” Helios  (restricted P&Z only)44” Helios

G Install Helios Without Arc Kit
30” Helios  (restricted P&Z only)39” Helios
36” Helios  (restricted P&Z only)44” Helios

Paint Canopy Columns White/BP Green, & Install Column Decal 
(Per Standards Shown on Note Page)
Paint As Shown In Guide
Install Flag Signs 10'6" From The Ground
Apply BP Light Green Stripe 10'0" From The Ground

Canopy Corners: Are NOT 90°Are 90°
Canopy Detail (Full Canopy Detail Page After Elevation)

K Canopy Deck To Be BP White

CANOPY 1 OF 1

CRIND POP

000088883399 000088883499 000088883599

87 89 93

$

Gallons
1

CHARLES H. BRONSONCommissioner
Florida Department of Agricultureand Consumer Services

1-800-435-7352

This device inspected for your protection by:Name: Date:

This devicemust startat zero

Self Serve
Don't overfill or "top-off" tank.
Persons using dispensers with hold-open
latches must remain at the fueling point
(outside and next to the vehicle) during
refueling.Never jam open the hold-open latch.
In Case of Fire
DO NOT REMOVE NOZZLE FROM
THE VEHICLE.Evacuate all passengers from the vehicle
and refueling area.Activate Emergency Shutoff Switch.
Notify attendant.
Call 911, if no attendant is on site.

WARNING

No Smoking  Stop EngineTurn Off Cell Phone

Portable Containers
Warning - it is unlawful and dangerous
to dispense motor fuels into unapproved
containers.Place container on the ground before
filling. Do not fill a container that is in a
vehicle or in a marine craft.Keep the nozzle in contact with the
portable container while filling.

Static Electric Spark
Explosion Hazard
Static and electrical sparks may cause
vapors to explode.Do not get back in your vehicle while
refueling. Re-entry could cause static
electricity spark.Discharge potential static buildup by
touching car metal away from the fueling
point with your bare hand before touching
the fueling nozzle.Turn off cellular phone and other electronic
devices while refueling. Devices should be
left in vehicle.

Health Warnings

Harmful or fatal if swallowed.   
Long-term exposure to vapors has 
caused cancer in laboratory animals. 

Keep face, eyes and skin away from nozzle
while refueling.  

Avoid prolonged breathing of vapors.  

For use as a motor fuel only.    Never siphon by mouth.  

2013

Filling plastic containers on a plastic bed
liner or inside your vehicle may lead to
static sparks which may ignite vapors.

Extremely flammable, vapors may explode.

PRE-PAY ONLY
Thi s  s i t e  i s

P lease see cashier  o r  inser t  your  c red i t  cardP u m p  n o z z l e  n e e d s  t o  b e  h u n g  u p  b e f o r e  t h e  c a s h i e rc a n  a u t h o r i z e  t h e  p u m p

GASOLINE
ENGINES ONLY

gasoline

TURN ENGINE OFF NO SMOKINGstop engine   no smoking 1

CRIND POP

PRE-PAY ONLY
Thi s  s i t e  i s

P lease see cashier  o r  inser t  your  c red i t  cardP u m p  n o z z l e  n e e d s  t o  b e  h u n g  u p  b e f o r e  t h e  c a s h i e rc a n  a u t h o r i z e  t h e  p u m p

$

Gallons
2

CHARLES H. BRONSONCommissioner
Florida Department of Agricultureand Consumer Services

1-800-435-7352

This device inspected for your protection by:Name: Date:

This devicemust startat zero

Self Serve
Don't overfill or "top-off" tank.
Persons using dispensers with hold-open
latches must remain at the fueling point
(outside and next to the vehicle) during
refueling.Never jam open the hold-open latch.
In Case of Fire
DO NOT REMOVE NOZZLE FROM
THE VEHICLE.Evacuate all passengers from the vehicle
and refueling area.Activate Emergency Shutoff Switch.
Notify attendant.
Call 911, if no attendant is on site.

WARNING

No Smoking  Stop EngineTurn Off Cell Phone

Portable Containers
Warning - it is unlawful and dangerous
to dispense motor fuels into unapproved
containers.Place container on the ground before
filling. Do not fill a container that is in a
vehicle or in a marine craft.Keep the nozzle in contact with the
portable container while filling.

Static Electric Spark
Explosion Hazard
Static and electrical sparks may cause
vapors to explode.Do not get back in your vehicle while
refueling. Re-entry could cause static
electricity spark.Discharge potential static buildup by
touching car metal away from the fueling
point with your bare hand before touching
the fueling nozzle.Turn off cellular phone and other electronic
devices while refueling. Devices should be
left in vehicle.

Health Warnings

Harmful or fatal if swallowed.   
Long-term exposure to vapors has 
caused cancer in laboratory animals. 

Keep face, eyes and skin away from nozzle
while refueling.  

Avoid prolonged breathing of vapors.  

For use as a motor fuel only.    Never siphon by mouth.  

2013

Filling plastic containers on a plastic bed
liner or inside your vehicle may lead to
static sparks which may ignite vapors.

Extremely flammable, vapors may explode.

diesel
BP

GASOLINE
ENGINES ONLY

gasoline

TURN ENGINE OFFNO SMOKINGstop engine   no smoking2

000088883399 000088883499 000088883599

87 89 93

L

H2

D

K

135'

36”

135'

B

10'-6”
sign

I

c l e a r a n c e

17'-0"

34'

B

34'

B

Place valance and 
skirt graphics so that 

they form a circle

CRIND POP

000088883399 000088883499 000088883599

87 89 93

$

Gallons
1

CHARLES H. BRONSONCommissioner
Florida Department of Agricultureand Consumer Services

1-800-435-7352

This device inspected for your protection by:Name: Date:

This devicemust startat zero

Self Serve
Don't overfill or "top-off" tank.
Persons using dispensers with hold-open
latches must remain at the fueling point
(outside and next to the vehicle) during
refueling.Never jam open the hold-open latch.
In Case of Fire
DO NOT REMOVE NOZZLE FROM
THE VEHICLE.Evacuate all passengers from the vehicle
and refueling area.Activate Emergency Shutoff Switch.
Notify attendant.
Call 911, if no attendant is on site.

WARNING

No Smoking  Stop EngineTurn Off Cell Phone

Portable Containers
Warning - it is unlawful and dangerous
to dispense motor fuels into unapproved
containers.Place container on the ground before
filling. Do not fill a container that is in a
vehicle or in a marine craft.Keep the nozzle in contact with the
portable container while filling.

Static Electric Spark
Explosion Hazard
Static and electrical sparks may cause
vapors to explode.Do not get back in your vehicle while
refueling. Re-entry could cause static
electricity spark.Discharge potential static buildup by
touching car metal away from the fueling
point with your bare hand before touching
the fueling nozzle.Turn off cellular phone and other electronic
devices while refueling. Devices should be
left in vehicle.

Health Warnings

Harmful or fatal if swallowed.   
Long-term exposure to vapors has 
caused cancer in laboratory animals. 

Keep face, eyes and skin away from nozzle
while refueling.  

Avoid prolonged breathing of vapors.  

For use as a motor fuel only.    Never siphon by mouth.  

2013

Filling plastic containers on a plastic bed
liner or inside your vehicle may lead to
static sparks which may ignite vapors.

Extremely flammable, vapors may explode.

PRE-PAY ONLY
Thi s  s i t e  i s

P lease see cashier  o r  inser t  your  c red i t  cardP u m p  n o z z l e  n e e d s  t o  b e  h u n g  u p  b e f o r e  t h e  c a s h i e rc a n  a u t h o r i z e  t h e  p u m p

GASOLINE
ENGINES ONLY

gasoline

TURN ENGINE OFF NO SMOKINGstop engine   no smoking 1

CRIND POP

PRE-PAY ONLY
Thi s  s i t e  i s

P lease see cashier  o r  inser t  your  c red i t  cardP u m p  n o z z l e  n e e d s  t o  b e  h u n g  u p  b e f o r e  t h e  c a s h i e rc a n  a u t h o r i z e  t h e  p u m p

$

Gallons
2

CHARLES H. BRONSONCommissioner
Florida Department of Agricultureand Consumer Services

1-800-435-7352

This device inspected for your protection by:Name: Date:

This devicemust startat zero

Self Serve
Don't overfill or "top-off" tank.
Persons using dispensers with hold-open
latches must remain at the fueling point
(outside and next to the vehicle) during
refueling.Never jam open the hold-open latch.
In Case of Fire
DO NOT REMOVE NOZZLE FROM
THE VEHICLE.Evacuate all passengers from the vehicle
and refueling area.Activate Emergency Shutoff Switch.
Notify attendant.
Call 911, if no attendant is on site.

WARNING

No Smoking  Stop EngineTurn Off Cell Phone

Portable Containers
Warning - it is unlawful and dangerous
to dispense motor fuels into unapproved
containers.Place container on the ground before
filling. Do not fill a container that is in a
vehicle or in a marine craft.Keep the nozzle in contact with the
portable container while filling.

Static Electric Spark
Explosion Hazard
Static and electrical sparks may cause
vapors to explode.Do not get back in your vehicle while
refueling. Re-entry could cause static
electricity spark.Discharge potential static buildup by
touching car metal away from the fueling
point with your bare hand before touching
the fueling nozzle.Turn off cellular phone and other electronic
devices while refueling. Devices should be
left in vehicle.

Health Warnings

Harmful or fatal if swallowed.   
Long-term exposure to vapors has 
caused cancer in laboratory animals. 

Keep face, eyes and skin away from nozzle
while refueling.  

Avoid prolonged breathing of vapors.  

For use as a motor fuel only.    Never siphon by mouth.  

2013

Filling plastic containers on a plastic bed
liner or inside your vehicle may lead to
static sparks which may ignite vapors.

Extremely flammable, vapors may explode.

diesel
BP

GASOLINE
ENGINES ONLY

gasoline

TURN ENGINE OFFNO SMOKINGstop engine   no smoking2

000088883399 000088883499 000088883599

87 89 93

c l e a r a n c e

17'-0"

1122

1122

JOBBER: PARENT PETROLEUM SITE LEVEL: B DESIGNER: CONNOR DANIELS REVISON #: JR1ADDRESS: 149 E OGDEN AVE, HINSDALE IL 60521-3518 SVB: 9178526 DATE: 05.07.2021

3" 36" 3"M

G

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line

Peter Mario Spina
Line



FORECOURT NOTES 2 OF 2 

2 Northfield Plaza, Ste 211  Northfield, IL 60093

This is an original concept drawing created by Big Red Rooster Flow, LLC. It is submitted for use in connection with the project being planned for you by BRRFlow. All or any part of this design (except registered trademarks) remains the property of BRRFlow.
 This drawing is not to scale. For all questions regarding the scope of the project, please contact Emily Wendt 847.971.6981 or The Brand Image Adviser, Larry Rowlands 708.495.5814

FORECOURT NOTES 2 OF 2 



 

 

 

 
 
DATE:  May 20, 2021 

TO:  Parent Petroleum 

  Jacklyn Bundy, Senior Project Manager 

FROM:  Christie Woods, Senior Program Manager 

SUBJECT:  149 E Ogden, Hinsdale, IL60521 – SVB 9178526 

 

There is no visible difference, no illumination difference, and no electrical difference between the Blair 
Lightbar product currently installed at the subject site and and the "new" LBe hybrid product proposed 
for installation.  The difference is in a few of the materials and largely production labor thereby reducing 
the cost of the product to pass through savings to the end user.  

 

Regarding the bleed, i.e. how much light would be cast on the street,  Blair can say that the LightBar 
product (both LightBar and LightBar‐e) does not exceed 0.3 footcandles above ambient as measured at 
100' away from the light source 

If you have any questions please feel free to contact Blair Image Elements at 814‐949‐8287. 
 
 
 



House / KZ

149 E. Ogden Avenue
Hinsdale, IL 60521

Bill Marlow

1.25.21

1.28.21 - reduce size of logo

2.11.21 - Helios size

4.13.21 - SF
4.29.21 - Placement

5.10.21 - New Layout

5.11.21 - add note

3.10.21 - Helios install only
- New Pride Logo - Channel Le�ers
- New Urban Counter - Channel Le�ers

3/4" = 1'

1 of 1

PRD6591

6591

"This Document is owned by, and the information contained in it is proprietary to, Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. By receipt hereof the holder agrees not to use the information, disclose it to any third party,
nor reproduce this document without the prior written consent of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. Holder also agrees to immediately return this document upon request of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company."

© Copyright 2021 by Parvin-Clauss Sign Co.

PROJECT:

CUSTOMER APPROVAL:

REVISIONS:
1

2

3

4

5

6

DATE

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

REPRESENTATIVE

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

SHEET NO.

ESTIMATE / JOB NUMBER

FILE NAME

7

5.19.21 - add OAH to existing8

This sign is intended to be installed 
in accordance with the 

requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or 

other applicable local codes. This 
includes proper grounding and 

bonding of the sign.

10
¼

"

10
"

7/8"
2

'-9
"

6'-0"

This sign is built to UL Standards
for operation in North America.

3/8" = 1'

6
'-3

¾
"

2
'-9

"

6'-0"

12'-0"

6'-4¼"

9
'-0

"

44.75 SF

44.75 SF

89.50" H
x 72" W
6444"

6444"
144

=

4
'-6

"

1¼"

1/"

4"

Refurbish Existing Double Face Monument Sign
Move (2) Existing BP/Helios Logos: Mount onto lower Area of Monument
 Illumination:  White LEDs - No more than 30 foot-candles
New (2) “The Pride” Panels w/ Channel Constructed Graphics:
 Panel:   3" Deep Fabricated Aluminum Painted PMS 288 Blue - Smooth Satin Finish
  Faces:  .125" Aluminum Painted PMS 288 Blue
  Black/Grey Gradient: Digitally Printed on White Vinyl Applied to Face
 Le�ers & White In-line:  Kalisigns Slimtek-F Face-lit 1" White Acrylic
  “The” Faces:  White Acrylic w/ 3M 3630-157 Sultan Blue Translucent Vinyl Applied
  “PRIDE” Faces: White Acrylic w/ 3M 3630-157 Sultan Blue Translucent Vinyl Applied
 Illumination: White LEDs with Remote 60Wa� Power Supplies - No more than 30 foot-candles
        Mounting:  Flush to Existing Masonry Base - Masonry Anchors

1"
3"

4'
-6

"

5'-07/8" 

12"

“bp” are FCO1/4” Thk. Acrylic

proposed layout is the same square footage as the existing layout.

9
'-6

" 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  July 9, 2021 

TO:  Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
 Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:   Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  

RE:  Case A-10-2021 – 137 S. Garfield Street – Union Church of Hinsdale – Installation of One (1) 
Ground Sign with a Bulletin Board  

FOR:  July 14, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Summary 
The Village of Hinsdale has received a sign application from Union Church of Hinsdale seeking approval to 
install one (1) new ground sign with a bulletin board at 137 S. Garfield Street. The existing building is 
located in the IB Institutional Buildings District and the Robbins Park Historic District. 
 
Request and Analysis 
The applicant is requesting to install one (1) new ground sign with a bulletin board for the Union Church 
of Hinsdale located at 137 S. Garfield Street. The proposed sign will replace the existing ground sign 
located at the northeast corner of Garfield Street and Third Street.  
 
As shown on the proposed plans, the ground sign will be located 14 feet from both the west property line 
along Garfield Avenue and from the south property line along Third Street. Per Section 9-106 of the Zoning 
Code, all ground signs must be located outside of the clear sight triangle area and must be setback at least 
10 feet from front and corner side lot lines.  
 
Per Section 9-106(J), in the IB District, ground signs shall not exceed 8 feet in height and may have a 
maximum gross surface area of a 50 square feet per sign face with no more than 2 faces per sign. The 
proposed ground sign measures 6 feet tall and 8 feet 10 inches wide. The combined sign face area of the 
non-illuminated logo and the internally-illuminated push-through letters will be 6.2 square feet. The 
bulletin board sign, which measures 13.3 square feet, is technically considered a permit-exempt sign and 
is counted separately from the overall square footage of the ground sign.  
 
The base of the ground sign will be constructed of a gray-colored stone veneer labeled “Indiana Limestone 
Berkshire Split Face Thin Veneer” that has 5” by 2.25” sized blocks. A different gray-colored stone veneer 
labeled “Indiana Limestone Vanderbilt Thin Veneer Smooth” with a larger 9” by 4” block size will be used 
on the left column. Both building materials are intended to match the church building. The sign cabinet 
will be constructed of a dark bronze aluminum sign case in a satin finish.  
 
The three separate sign areas within the ground sign are explained in further detail below: 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

1. UCH Logo on Limestone Column – A bronze-colored vinyl logo for the church will be mounted on the 
decorative stone column to the left of the bronze sign cabinet. The sign area measures 18” tall and 10 
5/8” wide, for a sign face area of 1.32 square feet. The letters for the logo will not be illuminated.  

 
2. Push-Through Letters within Bronze Aluminum Sign Cabinet – Internally-illuminated acrylic push-

through letters will be located within the dark bronze sign cabinet area above the bulletin board sign. 
The text and logo will be light beige in color. The sign area measures 4.8 square feet, with a width of 
6’ 3-½” and height of 9-¼”. 
 

3. Bulletin Board Sign - The proposed bulletin board sign will be located below the push-through letters 
within the dark bronze sign cabinet area. The sign measures 13.3 square feet in size, with a height of 
2’ 2-½” and width of 6’-½”. Per the Village’s Zoning Code, bulletin board signs are allowed on no more 
than one wall or ground sign per zoning lot, are limited a maximum sign face area of 15 square feet, 
and are permitted only in connection with public, religious, and civic institutions. Bulletin board sign 
shall be more than 4 feet in height and the supporting structure on which a bulletin board sign is 
located shall be no more than 8 feet in height.  
 
Because the Zoning Code does not allow the backgrounds of bulletin board signs to be transparent or 
internally illuminated, the proposed bulletin board area will be lit with graze lighting installed inside 
the cover frame. TETRA MAX lights manufactured by GE Current are similar to LED strip lights. The 
applicant has provided lighting specification sheets for review. A sample photo of the lights from the 
manufacturer’s website is also included below:  

 

 
 
Lighting Standards - The applicant will be required to meet the Village’s lighting standards. The 
illumination of any sign, resulting from any internal or external artificial light source, may not exceed 50 
foot-candles when measured with a standard light meter held perpendicular to the sign face at a distance 
equal to the narrowest dimension of such sign face. All artificial illumination shall be so designed, located, 
shielded, and directed as to illuminate only the sign face or faces and to prevent the casting of glare or 
direct light upon adjacent property or streets.  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Additionally, single-family homes are located to the south of the subject property in the R-1 Residential 
District and to the southwest in the R-4 Residential District. Any illuminated sign located on a lot abutting 
or across a street from, and visible from, any residentially zoned area shall not be illuminated between 
the hours of 10:00 P.M. and 7:00 A.M. except that such sign may remain illuminated during such time as 
the activity to which the sign pertains is open for business so long as such sign is not a public or private 
nuisance. 
 
Meeting History  
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting – July 7, 2021 - The sign permit was reviewed at the Historic 
Preservation Commission meeting on July 7, 2021. The applicant, Matt Klein, provided an overview of the 
proposed sign and answered questions from the Commissioners. Several items were discussed at the 
meeting and are summarized below: 

• Lighting: The Commission expressed concerns over the proposed LED lighting. The applicant 
confirmed that the logo located in the column on the left side of the ground sign would not be 
illuminated, the text above the bulletin board would be internally illuminated, and LED string lights 
would be installed around the inside of the frame of bulletin board. One resident that lives nearby 
Union Church spoke at the meeting, requested the applicant provide a rendering of what the ground 
sign would look like illuminated at night, asked if the applicant explored natural landscaping options 
to help the sign fit in with the historic homes nearby, and expressed concern for the proposed lighting 
levels. Several Commissioners recommended that the applicant provide additional lighting 
information, a rendering of the illumination and brightness of the sign at night, and explore using the 
LED light with a warm white color and less lumens compared to the selected bright white color with 
the highest level of lumens shown on the specification sheet.  

• Limestone Block Size / Masonry Materials: At the meeting, there was a discussion on the proposed 
building materials selected. Several Commissioners commented that the limestone block size 
proposed for the base of the ground sign may be too small and doesn’t appear to match the stone 
used on the church building. There was a discussion on why brick was not chosen, which may better 
match the brick used on the building. Laurie McMahon stated that Union Church changed the building 
material from brick to limestone during the design process to better match the entrance area on the 
south side of the building. It was noted that the rendering may not accurately represent the true 
appearance of the limestone blocks.  

• Aluminum Base Cap: Several Commissioners recommended that the proposed aluminum base cap 
should be switched to a limestone base cap to match the limestone cap used at the top of the sign. It 
was noted that a limestone cap would enhance the visual appearance of the sign and at the same 
time tie utilized additional stone that better ties into the aesthetics of the Robbins Park Historic 
District. It was noted that the ground sign for Grace Episcopal Church nearby in the Historic District 
utilized all stone that fit into the context of the surrounding area and building. 

 
The Historic Preservation Commission recommended approval of the sign permit request, Case A-10-2021 
for Union Church of Hinsdale located at 137 S. Garfield Street, by a vote of 6-0 (1 absent). The Commission 
recommended that the applicant consider replacing the aluminum base cap with a limestone cap, using a 
different limestone block size on the base of the sign, providing a rendering and additional details on the 
proposed LED lighting, and exploring changes to the intensity and warm white color of the proposed lights.  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

The applicant stated at the meeting that additional information will be brought to the Plan Commission 
meeting on July 14 for review.  
 
Process 
Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Plan Commission and does not require public notification. Per municipal code Section 14-5-1(B), the 
Historic Preservation Commission shall review signage in the Historic District. The final decision of the HPC 
shall be advisory only. The Plan Commission maintains final authority on signage with no further action 
required by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall 
establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 

 
Attachments 
1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Birds Eye View – 137 S. Garfield Street 
3. Street View – 137 S. Garfield Street 
4. Sign Application and Exhibits 

 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

137 S. Garfield Street 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

 

 

137 S. Garfield Street 
 



Birds Eye View – 137 S. Garfield Street  
 

 

  

Location of Existing / 
Proposed Ground Sign 



Street View – 137 S. Garfield  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Northeast Corner of Garfield Street and Third Street 



Street View – 137 S. Garfield  
 

 
 

  

Existing Ground Sign - Northeast Corner of Garfield Street and Third Street 

 











7933 W Hwy 6, Westville, IN 46391

1. 

James Burling

6-21-2021

 John Miller 219-508-7495

UNION CHURCH OF HINSDALE
137 S. GARFIELD STREET
HINSDALE, IL JM-0012-1G

ONE (1) SINGLE FACE SIGN - INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED WITH LEDs (UPPER SIGN PORTION ONLY / 
ROUTED 3/4” ACRYLIC PUSH-THROUGH COPY AND LOGO ELEMENTS /
WITH TRANSLUCENT VINYL ON FACES / WITH ONE (1) BULLETIN  BOARD / WITH 
FABRICATED POLE COVER AND CORNICE

SIGNCASE  = MATTHEW’S PAINT 421313SP DARK BRONZE
COLUMN =  INDIANA LIMESTONE BERKSHIRE SPLIT FACE VENEER TO MATCH CHURCH 
CORNICE = MAP TO MATCH 230-149 LIGHT BEIGE TRANS VINYL WITH TEXCOTE FINISH
LOGO= 3/4” CLEAR ACRYLIC WITH 230-69 DURANODIC BRONZE VINYL ON FACE
COPY= 3/4” CLEAR ACRYLIC WITH 230-149 LIGHT BEIGE TRANS VINYL ON FACES
ILLUMINATION= WHITE LEDs
POLE COVER= INDIANA LIMESTONE BERKSHIRE TEXTURED VENEER

6'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

4'
-8

 1 /
2"

1 
1 /

2" 2"

4'
-4

 1 /
2"

1 
1 /

2" 2"

1'-10"
1'-6"
1'-4"
1'-0"

Front View 3/4” = 1’-0” Side View 3/4” = 1’-0”

SERVICE DOOR

CONDUIT

5’ 
to

ta
l d

ep
th

2'-0" 2'-0"

3” square tube

UNITED CHURCH OF CHRIST

UNITED CHURCH OF CHRIST

3"

ELECTRIC:
MONUMENT  = 2 AMPS @ 120 VAC
VOLTS  = 110 VAC / 1 15 AMP CIRCUIT

CCB is NOT internally
illuminated - lit with
graze lighting inside
cover frame

Locking CCB
frame

3'
-1

0 
1/

2"

3'
-8

 1 /
2"

Indiana Limestone
Berkshire Split
Face Thin Veneer.
Block size 5 x 2.25”

Indiana Limestone
Vanderbilt Thin Veneer
Smooth.  Block size 9 x 4”

2'
-5

 3 /
8"

2'
-5

 7 /
8"

1'
-6

"

8'-10"
1'-10"
1'-6"

7'-0"

7'-2"

6'-6"
7'-11 3/8"

10 5/8" 6'-3 1/4"
6'-3 1/2"

6'-0 1/2"

9 
1 /

4"



Components
SKU Description Details Color Order

Unit
Pkg.

Quantity
Additional Information

Stretched Wire
93098199 GEMX2471-W1S Tetra® MAX 24V 7100K White Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93118645 GEMX2465-W1S Tetra® MAX 24V 6500K Warm White Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93118726 GEMX2457-W1S Tetra® MAX 24V 5700K Warm White Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93098200 GEMX2450-W1S Tetra® MAX 24V 5000K Warm White Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93098201 GEMX2441-W1S Tetra® MAX 24V 4100K Warm White Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93098202 GEMX2432-W1S Tetra® MAX 24V 3200K Warm White Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93069935 GEMX24RD-W1 Tetra® MAX colors 24V – 625 nm Red Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93070026 GEMXH24RD-W1 Tetra® MAX colors 24V HO – 625 nm Red Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93070027 GEMX24GL-W1 Tetra® MAX colors 24V – 530 nm Green Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93070028 GEMX24BL-W1 Tetra® MAX colors 24V – 470 nm Blue Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)
93070029 GEMX24YG-W1 Tetra® MAX colors 24V – 589 nm Amber Box 5 Strips/Box 30 modules/strip (20 ft/strip)

Technical Specifications

Description Wavelength/
CCT

Typical 
Brightness 
(Lumens/
module)

Typical 
Brightness 
Lumen/ft 

(Lumen/m)

Energy
Consumption

(Strip/
Module)

Energy
Consumption

(System/Module)
Power Supply Loading Viewing

Angle

GEMX2471-W1S 7100K 100 150 (492) 0.62 W/module 0.73 W/module 87 ft (26.5 m) /100WPS 170
GEMX2465-W1S 6500K 100 150 (492) 0.62 W/module 0.73 W/module 87 ft (26.5 m) /100WPS 170
GEMX2457-W1S 5700K 100 150 (492) 0.62 W/module 0.73 W/module 87 ft (26.5 m) /100WPS 170
GEMX2450-W1S 5000K 100 150 (492) 0.62 W/module 0.73 W/module 87 ft (26.5 m) /100WPS 170
GEMX2441-W1S 4100K 100 150 (492) 0.62 W/module 0.73 W/module 87 ft (26.5 m) /100WPS 170
GEMX2432-W1S 3200K 90 135 (443) 0.62 W/module 0.73 W/module 87 ft (26.5 m) /100WPS 170
GEMX24RD-W1 625nm 20 30 (98) 0.46 W/module 0.54 W/module 120 ft (36.5 m) /100WPS 170

GEMXH24RD-W1 625nm 32 48 (158) 0.74 W/module 0.87 W/module 73 ft (22.3 m) /100WPS 170
GEMX24GL-W1 530nm 44 66 (217) 0.77 W/module 0.91 W/module 71 ft (21.7 m) /100WPS 170
GEMX24BL-W1 470nm 15 23 (74) 0.70 W/module 0.82 W/module 79 ft (23.9 m) /100WPS 170
GEMX24YG-W1 589nm 14 23 (74) 0.38 W/module 0.45 W/module 140 ft (42.6 m) /100WPS 170

Technical Specifications
Specification Item White Modules Colored Modules
LEDs/Module 4 2
LEDs/ft (LEDs/m) 6 (19.7) 3 (9.8)
Modules/ ft. (Modules/m) 1.5 (4.9) 1.5 (4.9)

Module Dimensions (h x l x w) 0.41 in x 2.4 in x 0.54 in
(10.46 mm x 61 mm x 13.6 mm) 

0.45 in x 3.45 in x 0.63 in
(11.41 mm x 87.6 mm x 16.1 mm)

Cutting Resolution Cut on wire between every module

Power Supply
GEPS24-25-NA Input: 100-305VAC; Output: 24VDC
GEPS24D-80U Input: 90-305VAC; Output: 24VDC
GEPS24-100U Input: 108-305VAC; Output: 24VDC

GEPS24-180U Input: 90-305VAC; Output: 24VDC
GEPS24-300U Input: 108-305VAC; Output: 24VDC

Maximum Supply Wire Limits

18 AWG/0.82
mm2 Supply Wire

16 AWG/1.31
mm2 Supply Wire

14 AWG/2.08
mm2 Supply Wire

12 AWG/3.31
mm2 Supply Wire

25W Power Supply 120 ft./36.6 m - - -
80W Power Supply 20 ft./6.1 m 25 ft./7.6 m 35 ft./10.6 m 40 ft./12.1 m
100W Power Supply 20 ft./6.1 m 25 ft./7.6 m 35 ft./10.6 m 40 ft./12.1 m
180W Power Supply 20 ft./6.1 m 25 ft./7.6 m 35 ft./10.6 m  40 ft./12.1 m
300W Power Supply 20 ft./6.1 m 25 ft./7.6 m 35 ft./10.6 m 40 ft./12.1 m

Operating Environment -40 °C to +60 °C
Warranty Limited system warranty of up to five (5) years
System Certifications UL Recognized (C-US) #E219167, UL Classified (C-US) #E229508, CE, ROHS  •  IP66 rated: for dry, damp or wet location.

© 2020 Current Lighting Solutions, LLC. All rights reserved. GE and the GE monogram are trademarks 
of the General Electric Company and are used under license. Information provided is subject to change 
without notice. All values are design or typical values when measured under laboratory conditions.

www.gecurrent.com | SIGN 254 (Rev 06/16/20)

terry
Highlight

terry
Highlight

terry
Highlight

terry
Highlight

terry
Highlight

terry
Highlight

terry
Highlight



Tetra MAX 24V colors
[ .63 ]
16.10

[ 3.45 ]
87.60

[ 2.42 ]
61.50

[ .45 ]
11.41

[ 4.55 ]
115.60

[ 1.65 ]
42.00

304.8
1.5 modules/foot

[ .50 ]
12.70

[ .50 ]
12.70

 
[ .50 ]
12.70  

[ .42 ]
10.8

[ .54 ]
13.60  

[ 2.40 ]
61.00

[ 1.93 ]
49.0

[ 1.06 ]
27.00

 
5.60

142.20 

 1.5 MOD/FT 

 Total Reliability
To ensure every Tetra® MAX installation will operate 
brilliantly for years, we perform the most extensive, 
stringent testing in the industry. We test the LED, water 
and dust ingress protection, sub-system and complete 
system at our in-house and independent laboratories 
around the world. Validation of our designs, compo-
nents, products and processes include high temperature, 
high humidity and accelerated life testing.

Mechanical Outline & Viewing Angle
 Dimensions in (inches). Metric equivalent mm.

Tetra MAX 24V whites

Tetra® MAX



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  July 9, 2021 

TO:  Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
 Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:   Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  

RE:  Case A-13-2021 – 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue – Marabella Home – Installation of One (1) Wall Sign  

FOR:  July 14, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Summary 
The Village of Hinsdale has received a sign application from Anthony Perna with Signco Inc. to install one 
(1) new wall sign for Marabella Home located at 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue. The existing two-story building is 
located in the B-2 Central Business District and the Downtown Historic District. 
 
Request and Analysis 
The applicant is requesting to install one (1) new wall sign for a new retail tenant, Marabella Home, located 
at 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue. The sign is proposed within the header located above the storefront windows. 
The applicant has presented two possible locations within the header area where the sign can either be 
centered over the storefront window only or can be centered over both the storefront window and the 
entrance doors.  
 
As shown on the signage plans, the proposed non-illuminated wall sign measures 22.5” tall and 96.5” 
wide, with an overall sign face area of 15.07 square feet. The wall sign consists of black acrylic flat cut out 
letters on a solid white aluminum background. No window signage is proposed.  
 
Per Section 9-106(J), in the B-2 District, a maximum gross surface area of all awning valance, canopy 
valance, wall, and permanent window signs for the entire building shall not exceed the greater of: 1) one 
square foot per foot of building frontage, up to a maximum of one hundred (100) square feet, or 2) twenty 
five (25) square feet for each business that has a separate ground level principal entrance directly to the 
outside of the building onto a street, alley, courtyard, or parking lot. The proposed wall sign meets the 
sign code requirements listed in Section 9-106.   

Meeting History 
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting – July 7, 2021 – The applicant was not present at the July 7, 
2021meeting. The Commission noted that they preferred the signage be centered over both the 
storefront window and the entrance doors rather than be mounted to the left over just the storefront 
window. By a vote of 6-0, the Historic Preservation Commission recommended tabling the vote to the 
next meeting scheduled on August 4 where the applicant would be present to discuss the signage plans.  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Process 
Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Plan Commission and does not require public notification. Per municipal code Section 14-5-1(B), the 
Historic Preservation Commission shall review signage in the Historic District. The final decision of the HPC 
shall be advisory only. The Plan Commission maintains final authority on signage with no further action 
required by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall 
establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 

 
Attachments 
1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Birds Eye View – 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue 
3. Street View – 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue 
4. Sign Permit Application and Exhibits 

 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

28 E. Hinsdale 
Avenue 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

 

 

28 E. Hinsdale Avenue 
 



Birds Eye View – 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue  
 

 

  

28 E. Hinsdale Avenue 



Street View – 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue  
 

 
 

 

28E. Hinsdale Avenue 











 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  July 9, 2021 

TO:  Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
 Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:   Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  

RE:  Case A-14-2021 – 110 S. Washington Street – County Line Home Design Center – Installation 
of One (1) Wall Sign  

FOR:  July 14, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Summary 
The Village of Hinsdale has received a sign application from County Line Home Design Center seeking 
approval to install one (1) new wall sign for County Line Home Design Center located at 110 S. Washington 
Street. The existing two-story building is located in the B-2 Central Business District and the Downtown 
Historic District. 
 
Request and Analysis 
The applicant is requesting to install one (1) new wall sign for County Line Home Design Center, the 
existing business located at 110 S. Washington Street. The sign consists of gold colored wood letters that 
will be stud mounted onto the header above the storefront windows and entrance. The proposed non-
illuminated wall sign measures 10” tall and 162.6” wide, with an overall sign face area of 11.3 square feet.  
 
Per Section 9-106(J), in the B-2 District, a maximum gross surface area of all awning valance, canopy 
valance, wall, and permanent window signs for the entire building shall not exceed the greater of: 1) one 
square foot per foot of building frontage, up to a maximum of one hundred (100) square feet, or 2) twenty 
five (25) square feet for each business that has a separate ground level principal entrance directly to the 
outside of the building onto a street, alley, courtyard, or parking lot. The proposed wall sign meets the 
sign code requirements listed in Section 9-106.   
 
Meeting History 
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting – July 7, 2021 - The sign permit was reviewed at the Historic 
Preservation Commission meeting on July 7, 2021. The sign contractor, Pat Franz, provided an overview 
of the proposed sign and answered questions from the Commissioners. A sample of one of the individual 
letters was also shown to the Commissioners at the meeting.  
 
There was a discussion over the existing pilaster / column located within the proposed signage area at the 
upper left side of the storefront windows. Several Commissioners noted that the proposed “S” letter 
appeared to be mounted on the pilaster, which extends forward and therefore would place the “S” on a 
different plane than the other letters. Due to visual concerns over the appearance, the Commission 
recommended that all of the letters be located on the same horizontal plane.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Several options were discussed, including mounting the letters on different individual stem lengths or all 
letters on a backer ground. It was determined that individual letters will be made thicker to create the 
appearance that all are located on the same plane. 
 
The Historic Preservation Commission recommended approval of the sign permit request, Case A-14-2021 
for County Line Home Design Center located at 110 S. Washington Street, subject to the letters be 
mounted on the same linear plane, by a vote of 5-0 (1 absent, 1 recused).Chairman Bohnen recused 
himself from the vote as he is associated with the business.  
 
Process 
Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Plan Commission and does not require public notification. Per municipal code Section 14-5-1(B), the 
Historic Preservation Commission shall review signage in the Historic District. The final decision of the HPC 
shall be advisory only. The Plan Commission maintains final authority on signage with no further action 
required by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall 
establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 

 
Attachments 
1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Birds Eye View – 110 S. Washington Street 
3. Street View – 110 S. Washington Street 
4. Sign Permit Application and Exhibits 

 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

110 S. Washington 
Street 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

 

 

110 S. Washington Street 
 



Birds Eye View – 110 S. Washington Street  
 

 

  

110 S. Washington Street 



Street View – 110 S. Washington Street  
 

 

  

110 S. Washington Street  

* Please note the storefront and trim was previously painted black since this Google StreetView photo was taken  










	1. 7-14-2021 PC Agenda
	2. 5-12-21 PC Minutes - Draft
	MINUTES
	PLAN COMMISSION
	May 12, 2021
	Call to Order & Roll Call
	Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items
	Chairman Cashman asked for any public comments. There was no public comment pertaining to non-agenda items.
	Other Business
	Adjournment

	3. 149 E. Ogden - Design Review Permit - Schedule PH - Full PC Packet - 7.14.2021
	1. Zoning Map and Project Location
	2. Aerial - 149 E. Ogden
	3. Birds Eye View - 149 E. Ogden
	4. Street View
	5. Section 11-605 - Design Review Permit Standards
	6. Applications and Exhibits
	1. Plan Commission Application
	2. Design Review Permit Application
	3. Certificate of Zoning Compliance
	4. Sign Permit Application
	6. Cover Letter
	7. Plat of Survey
	8.  Landscape Plan - Site Plan
	9. Elevations BW
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	10. Elevations Colored
	11. Wall Sign - The Pride
	12. Photos of Existing Gas Station Canopy
	13. Gas Station Canopy Elevations Plans
	14. Gas Station Canopy Light Band Memo
	15. Monument Sign Plan


	4. Union Church of Hinsdale Ground Sign - Full PC Packet - 7.14.2021
	1. Union Church of Hinsdale - Ground Sign - PC Staff Report - 7.14.2021
	2. Zoning Map and Project Location
	3. Birds Eye View - 110 S. Washington
	4. Street View - 137 S. Garfield
	5. Application and Exhibits

	5. Marabella Home Wall Sign - Full PC Packet - 7.14.2021
	1. Marabella Wall Sign - PC Staff Report - 7.14.2021
	2. Zoning Map and Project Location
	3. Birds Eye View - 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue
	4. Street View - 28 E. Hinsdale Avenue
	5. Sign Permit Application and Exhibits

	6. 110 S. Washington - Full PC Packet - 7.14.2021
	1. 110 S. Washington - PC Staff Report - 7.14.2021
	2. Zoning Map and Project Location
	3. Birds Eye View - 110 S. Washington
	4. Street View -110 S. Washington
	5. Sign Permit Application and Exhibits




